
 

Central Almaguin Planning Board 

AGENDA  
Wednesday, October 1, 2025 

At the Village of South River Municipal Office located at 

63 Marie Street, South River  
 

Join Zoom Meeting 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83670712440?pwd=WalsO8kybC0eZwhFUeqJjoDiZhLnz8.1 

 

Meeting ID: 836 7071 2440      Passcode: 194279 

 

 

1. Call to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

 

Recommendation: BE IT RESOLVED THAT this Board does hereby approve the October 1, 

2025 agenda. 

 

3. Declaration of Pecuniary Interests 

 

4. Minutes – September 3, 2025 Meeting   

 

Recommendation: BE IT RESOLVED THAT this Board does hereby adopt the minutes of 

Wednesday, September 3, 2025; as written 

 

5. Payment of October Accounts: 

 

Recommendation: BE IT RESOLVED THAT this Board does hereby approve payment of the 

October Accounts: 

 

 Ch# 667 - Village of South River – Rent for October 2025 - $363.78 

 Ch# 668 - Christine Hickey – Wages (September 1, 2025 – September 30, 2025 – 30.5 hours)  

 Ch# 669 – Client First Canada – Invoice 2763 - $474.60 

 

Online CRA Payments for September ($176.67)  

Online Visa Payment for September ($18.65)  

 

6. Public Meetings/Decisions on the following Files  

 

6.1     B015/25 Strong – Concession 4, Lot 32 – 67 Gibbons Road  

 

 



 

7. New Files 

 

7.1 B016/25 Machar – Concession 4, Part Lot 22,23,24 – 2035 Eagle Lake Road  

7.2 S002/25 Strong – Concession 8, Lot 18  - 151 Sunny Ridge Road 

 

8. Follow-up/New Items  

 

8.1 B003/24 and B004/24 Lount – Concession A, Lot 148 and 149 - 977 Rye Road 

(to follow) 

 

8.2 2025 Estimated Budget 

  

Recommendation: BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Central Almaguin Planning Board 

receive the 2025 estimated budget. 

 

8.3 Pahaphill and Associates – 2024 Audit (to follow) 

 Re: 2024 Draft Financial Statements 

 

Recommendation: BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Central Almaguin Planning Board 

receive the 2024 Draft Audit Documents prepared by Pahapill & Associates 

Professional Corp.; 

 

AND THAT the Chair and Secretary-Treasurer be authorized to sign the required 

documents to complete the 2024 audit process. 

 

8.4 Office Closure – Wednesday October 15, 2025  

 

Recommendation:  BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Central Almaguin Planning Board 

approve the closure of the Office on Wednesday October 15, 2025.  Staff will work 

remotely to ensure work is completed. 

 

9. Correspondence/Updates - None   

 

10.   By-Laws 

 

Recommendation:  BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Central Almaguin Planning Board 

approve By-Law 2025-001 being a By-law to Govern the calling, place and proceedings 

of meetings of  the Central Almaguin Planning Board. 

 

11.           Closed Session - None 

  

12.   Adjournment – Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, November 5, 2025 at 5:30 p.m. 

 



 

Recommendation:  BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Central Almaguin Planning Board 

adjourn at _______ p.m. until Wednesday November 5, 2025 or at the call of the Chair. 

 

 

                                                Original e-mailed:  September _____, 2025     Amended: ___, 2025 



 

 

Central Almaguin Planning Board 

MINUTES 

Wednesday, September 3, 2025 

At the Village of South River Municipal Office located at 

63 Marie Street, South River  
 

Attending:       

Chair   South River Member Jim Coleman  

Provincial Member John MacLachlan (electronically)    

Vice Chair  Machar Member Lynda Carleton    
Sundridge Member Fraser Williamson (electronically) 
Joly Member Chris Nicholson 
Strong  Member Tim Bryson 

   

Secretary-Treasurer:  Christine Hickey   

 

Public - None 

 

1. Call to order  

 

The Chair called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

 

Resolution #1 

Moved by:  Fraser Williamson 

Seconded by:  Lynda Carleton 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT this Board does hereby approve the September 3, 2025 agenda as 

amended to add 8.3 B006/25 and B007/25 Lount – Draft Survey Review and Direction.  

CARRIED 

 

3. Declaration of Pecuniary Interests - None 

 

4. Minutes   

 

Resolution #2 

Moved by:  John MacLachlan 

Seconded by: Chris Nicholson 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT this Board does hereby adopt the minutes of Wednesday, August 6, 

2025; as written          CARRIED 

 



 

 

 

5. Payment of September Accounts: 

 

Resolution #3 

Moved by:  Lynda Carleton 

Seconded by:  John MacLachlan 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT this Board does hereby approve payment of the September 

Accounts: 

 

 Ch# 664 - Village of South River – Rent for September 2025 - $363.78 

 Ch# 665 - Christine Hickey – Wages (August 1, 2025 – August 31, 2025 – 25.5 hours)  

 Ch# 666 – Municipal Planning Services – Invoices 7380,7381 - $707.67 

 

Online CRA Payments for August ($148.69)  

Online Visa Payment for August ($18.65)       CARRIED 

 

6. Public Meetings/Decisions on the following Files - None 

 

7. New Files 

 

7.1 B015/25 Strong – Concession 4, Lot 32 – 67 Gibbons Road  

 

Discussion ensued on the size of the subject lands. 

 

The Secretary-Treasurer was directed to proceed with a Notice of Public Meeting for 

October. 

 

8. Follow-up/New Items  

 

8.1 Procedural By-law – Draft for Discussion  

 

Discussion ensued on the draft by-law, the board requested the Secretary-Treasurer to 

revise the draft to include the changes and bring the October meeting for further 

direction. 

 

Resolution #4 

Moved by:  John MacLachlan 

Seconded by:  Lynda Carleton 

  

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Central Almaguin Planning Board receive the draft 

procedural by-law.        CARRIED 

 



 

 

 

 

8.2  Amalgamation Exploration – Update and Impact to Planning Board  

 (Member Tim Bryson) 

 

Moving slowly through the stages as outlined in the work plan and are in the process of 

obtaining additional studies. 

 

Item 8.2 to be moved to a future meeting 

 

8.3  B006/25 and B007/25 Lount – Draft Survey Review and Direction 

 

Resolution #5 

Moved by:  Fraser Williamson 

Seconded by:  Tim Bryson 

  

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Central Almaguin Planning Board receive the draft Plan of 

Survey; 

 

AND THAT the Board approve a minor change in Frontage and Depth to ensure there is 

no impact to other structures on the retained lands: 

Lot 1: 76.0 m (+/-) Frontage on Rye Road, with a depth of 162.1 m (+/-) and an area of  

1.22 ha (+/-).  

Lot 2: 85.05 m (+/-) Frontage on Rye Road, with a depth of 140 m (+/-) and an area of  

1.12 ha (+/-).  

AND THAT the Board approve the Plan as presented and authorize the Secretary-

Treasurer to proceed with the required signatures.    CARRIED 

9. Correspondence/Updates  

 

The Secretary-Treasurer advised that a Notice of public Meeting for a Zoning By-law 

amendment was received from the Township of Machar. 

   

10. Closed Session 

  

Resolution #6 

Moved by:  Fraser Williamson 

Seconded by:  John MacLachlan 

 

Be it resolved that the Central Almaguin Planning Board hold a  

Closed Session as provided for by Section 239 (b) of the Municipal Act, 2001, as 



 

 

amended to deal with: Advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including 

communications necessary for that purpose.  

 

The Board moved into closed session at 5:59 p.m. 

 

Resolution #7 

Moved by:  Lynda Carleton 

Seconded by:  John MacLachlan 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Central Almaguin Planning Board does hereby return to 

open session at 6:10 p.m.        CARRIED 

 

     

11.   Adjournment  

 

Resolution #8 

Moved by:  Tim Bryson 

Seconded by:  Fraser Williamson 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Central Almaguin Planning Board adjourn at 6:12 p.m. 

until Wednesday October 1, 2025 or at the call of the Chair.   CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________               _______________________________ 

Jim Coleman, Chair        Christine Hickey, Secretary-Treasurer 

 

















































































































































Revenue Total
Provincial Grant 11,936.00
Special Case Business Funding 495.00
Consent Admin Fees 30,000.00
Consent Deposit Fee 8,000.00
Finalization Fees 2,500.00

$52,931.00

Expenses Total
Wages and CRA Fees 14,000.00
Board Members 10,000.00
Audit 3,960.00
Copies/postage/Stationary 1,400.00
Rent 4,365.00
Insurance 1,902.00
Bank Fees 55.00
Training 0.00
Professional Fees 9,500.00
Miscellaneous 7,749.00

$52,931.00

2025 Unaudited Budget



 

1 

 

 

THE CENTRAL ALMAGUIN PLANNING BOARD 

  

By-Law 2025-001   

Being a By-law to Govern the calling, place and proceedings of meetings of  
the Central Almaguin Planning Board. 

 

 

Whereas the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended requires that  
every municipality and local board shall pass a procedural by-law for governing the  
calling, place and proceedings of meetings; and   

WHEREAS the Central Almaguin Planning Board deems it expedient to enact a by-
law to govern the calling, place and proceedings of meetings. 

Now Therefore the Central Almaguin Planning Board Enacts as Follows:   

 

1.0 DEFINITIONS  
 
 

Agenda means the written Order of Business.  
 

Attendee shall mean a person, other than a member of Staff, who is present at a meeting.   
 

Board Shall mean the Central Almaguin Planning Board.   
 

Board Meetings include Regular, Special and Emergency Meetings of the Central      
           Almaguin Planning Board. 

 

By-Law Shall mean a law that has been enacted by the Board in order to exercise a 
power provided in an Act.   

 

Closed Session Shall mean a meeting or part of a meeting that is closed to the public as 
prescribed in Section 239 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, C.25, as amended.   

 

Chair Shall mean the member who presides at a Central Almaguin Planning Board Meeting.  
   An Acting Chair can be temporarily appointed to serve in Chair’s place during their absence.   

 

Communications Shall include, but not limited to, letters, memos, notices, emails, petitions, 
brochures, articles, etc. received for the purpose of the Board Agenda.   

 

Delegation Shall mean a person or group of persons who are not members of the Board who 
have requested and are permitted to address the Board, individually or on behalf of a group, on 
a matter on the Agenda for that meeting in accordance with the provisions of this By-law.   

 

Emergency shall mean a situation that poses an immediate threat to the Central Almaguin 
Planning Board.   



 

2 

 

 
Electronic Participation means a Board Member who participates in a meeting remotely via 
electronic means (e.g. Video or audio teleconference), who has the same rights and 
responsibilities as if they were in physical attendance, including the right to vote, and shall be 
permitted to participate in any portion of a meeting which is closed to the public.  

 
Majority Vote” shall mean a vote where over half of the Members are present, and eligible to 
vote and vote in the same manner.   

 

 

 

 
Member shall mean a representative appointed by a member municipality or by the Province 

 
Minutes” shall mean a record of the proceedings of a meeting and shall be made by the 
Secretary-Treasurer without note of comment.   

 

Motion shall mean a Resolution of the Board that is under debate.   
 

Order of Business shall mean the sequence of business under consideration at a 
meeting.   

 

Pecuniary Interest shall mean a direct or indirect pecuniary (monetary) interest within the 
meaning of the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act. R.S.O. 1990, c.M.50, as amended.   

 

Presentation shall mean individual or group invited to present information to the Board   
 

Proceedings shall mean the business conducted at a meeting.  
 

Public Meeting (Statutory) shall mean a meeting held for the purpose required under  
an Act or Regulation.   

 

Quorum shall mean the number of Members required to be present in the meeting room, 
in order that business may be conducted.   

 

Recess shall mean a break from a meeting.  
 

Recorded Vote shall mean documenting in the minutes of a meeting the names of each 
member and the members’ vote on a motion.   

 

Resolution shall mean a motion that has been passed by the Board. 
 

Secretary-Treasurer Shall mean the person or designate duly appointed by the Board as 

prescribed in the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, C.25, as amended.   
 

Special Meeting shall be deemed a meeting which is in addition to the regular scheduled 
meetings.   
 

 

 

 

 



 

3 

 

2.  GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS  

 

2.1 The rules and regulations contained in this By-law shall be observed in all 
proceedings of the Board to which they apply and shall be the rules and regulations 
for the order of business at meetings of the Central Almaguin Planning Board.   

 

2.2 Subject to the requirements of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25, as amended, 
the rules and regulations contained herein may be suspended by resolution for a 
single occasion by a majority Vote of the members present and eligible to vote, unless 
otherwise provided by law.   

 

2.3 Subject to the right of appeal by a Member, the chair shall be responsible to 

interpret the rules of procedure under this By-law with the advice and assistance of 
the Secretary-Treasurer 

 
2.4 No Meeting of the Board shall be held in the absence of the Recording Secretary.  
 

2.5 Where procedural matters of the Board are not provided for in this by-law and are not  
governed by the Municipal Act, 2001 and the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act,  
Robert’s Rules of Order shall apply.   

 

2.6 In the case of the absence of the Chair and Acting Chair at a meeting of the Board, 
the remaining Members shall appoint by resolution another Member as Acting Chair.   

 

2.7 Persons shall not be permitted to address the Board unless permission of the 
Chair has been obtained.   

 

2.8 Board meetings will be live streamed and/or audio recorded, on an appropriate  
internet based platform that is generally available to members of the public.   

 

2.9 The link to access the live streaming of meetings will be published in the 

applicable meeting Agenda.   
 

 

3.  PUBLIC NOTICE AND MEETINGS 

 

3.1 Prior to the first meeting in each calendar year, the Board shall establish a schedule 
of all regular meeting dates for the calendar year  

 

3.2 Notice of changes to the meeting schedule, including the revised date, time and 
location shall be given at least 24 hours advance notice. Changes to the meeting 
schedule will be posted as deemed appropriate by the Recording Secretary, and 
may include, posting on website. 

 
3.3 The schedule shall contain the date, time and location of the meetings and will be 

posted on the board website.  The meeting schedule is subject to change as 
necessary.   

 
3.4 Notice of a Special Meeting of the Board, including the date, time, location and order 

of Business shall be given at least 24 hours prior to  the meeting.  Notice of a Special 



 

4 

 

Meeting will be posted as deemed appropriate by the Secretary-Treasurer, and may 
include, posting on the website.   

 

3.5 If it appears that inclement weather or an emergency situation will prevent the 
members from attending a meeting, the Chair may direct the Secretary-Treasurer to 
postpone the meeting by contacting all members and posting a notice as deemed 
appropriate by the Secretary-Treasurer   

 
4.  TIME AND DATE  

 

4.1 Regular Meetings of Board shall be held on the first Wednesday of each month and 
shall begin at 5:30 p.m., unless otherwise specified, and except when Wednesday 
is a statutory holiday, in which case Board shall meet on the next regular scheduled 
Meeting date or at the call of the Chair.   

 

5.  LOCATION 

 

5.1 All meetings of Board shall be held in the Council Chambers at the South River 
Municipal Administration Office located at 63 Marie Street, South River.  If another 
location is agreed upon, notice will be provided on the published agenda for that 
meeting.   

 

5.2 The location of All meetings of Board will be indicated on the published Agenda.   
 

6.  SPECIAL MEETINGS 

 

6.1 The Chair may at any time summon a special meeting and only the matters dealt with 
at the special meeting shall be those indicated on the notice provided.   

 

6.2 Upon receipt of a petition of the majority of Members of the Board, the Secretary-
Treasurer shall summon a special meeting and the only matters dealt with at the 
special meeting shall be those indicated on the notice provided.   

 

6.3 In either circumstance, the Secretary-Treasurer shall give every member of Board at 
least 24 hours notice of the Special Meeting. Notice shall be either verbal or written 
and shall include the purpose  of the Special Meeting.   

 

7.  ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION  

 

7.1 Electronic Participation at meetings may be conducted, pursuant to Section 238 of 
the Municipal Act, as amended, and in accordance with this by-law.   

 

7.2 Members participating electronically shall be entitled to vote as if they were 
attending in person and participate electronically in a meeting that is open or closed 
to the public.   

 

7.3 Members participating electronically in closed session shall have their camera on for 
the duration of the closed session and shall confirm that there is no other person(s) 
in the room with them.   



 

5 

 

              

 

8.  ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION – EMERGENCY SITUATIONS  

 

8.1 This by-law is to be applied broadly and with flexibility to permit meetings to occur in 
light of special circumstances associated with emergency situations.  

 

8.2 As determined by the Chair and Secretary-Treasurer, in an undeclared or declared  
emergency situation, all members, the Secretary-Treasurer, may participate 
electronically.   
 

8.3 All members shall be counted for the purposes of quorum and shall be entitled to 
vote.   

 

8.4 In deciding whether to hold a meeting or meetings electronically, Board shall 
consider the health and safety of the public.    

 

8.5 In emergency situations where the health and safety of the public is deemed to be at 
risk, meetings will be open to the public by live streaming and/or audio recorded on 
an appropriate internet-based platform that is generally available to members of the 
public.    

 

9.  ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES  

 

9.1 At meetings of the Board, it shall be the duty of the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson 
to:  

a) open the meeting by taking the Chair and calling the Members to order;  

b) announce the business of the Board, in order in which it is presented on the agenda,  

    as may be amended by the Board from time to time;  

c) receive and submit, in the proper manner, all motions presented by the Members; 

d) decline to put to vote motions which infringe upon the rules of procedure;  

e) enforce the observance of order and decorum among Members and guests;  

f) call by name any person persisting in breach of the rules of order of the Board and  

   may order that person to leave the meeting;  

g) authenticate by signature all By-laws, Resolutions and Minutes of the Board; 

h) inform the Board when necessary or when referred to on a point of order or usage 

i)  represent and support the Board, declaring its will and implicitly obeying its decisions in all 
matters; ensure that the decisions of the Board are in conformity with the laws and by-laws 
governing the activities of the Board;  

j) order any person or group in attendance at the meeting to cease and desist any behavior 
which disrupts the order and decorum of the meeting and expel any group or person who 
continues to disrupt the meeting after being warned; adjourn the meeting without question 
where group or person refuses to leave the meeting after being ordered to do so by the 
Chairperson;  



 

6 

 

k) act or appoint a person to communicate to the media and the public; 

 

l) in the absence of the Chairperson, the Secretary-Treasurer or other Member may be 
assigned the duties to preside the meeting by a majority of the Board Members present.  

 
10. MEMBERS OF THE BOARD CONDUCT  
 

No Member at a meeting shall;  

 

a) speak aloud at a meeting or address members without first receiving permission of the  
     Chairperson to do so;  

b) use profane language or offensive words or insulting expressions against any member,  

     staff or guests;  

c) resist the rules of the Board or disobey the decisions of the Chair or presiding officer of the  
    Board on questions of order or practice or upon the interpretation of the rules of the Board;  

d) leave his/her seat or make any noise or disturbance while a matter is being considered or  
    discussed by the Board, while a vote is being taken, or until the results are declared ;  

e) interrupt any member while speaking through speaking out, noise or disturbance, except for  
    a member to raise a point of order;  

f) speak on any subject other than the subject in debate;  

g) enter the meeting while a vote in being taken;  

h) leave a meeting without first obtaining permission from the Chair or presiding officer; 

 i) be permitted to retake their seat after being ordered to leave, after committing a breach of  
    the rules, until the next meeting, and without having apologized to the Board.  

 
11. CONDUCT OF MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  

 

11.1 Persons attending a meeting of the Central Almaguin Planning Board will obey the 
Chairperson at all times, and no person at a Board meeting shall;  

a) speak or address Members of the Board without first receiving permission of the 
Chairperson to do so;  

b) use profane or offensive words or insulting against the Board, any Member, staff or guest;  

c) resist the rules of the Board or disobey the decisions of the Chair or presiding officer or of 
the Board and questions of order or practice or upon the interpretation of the rules of the 
Board;  

d) leave his/her seat or make any noise or disturbance while a matter is being considered or 
discussed by the Board, while a vote is being taken or until the results are declared;  

e) interrupt any Board Member or speak out of turn thereby creating a disturbance,  

f) if a person is asked to leave a meeting, that person will only be permitted to attend any 
future meeting(s) of the board with permission of the Board by having satisfied the 
Chairperson, and Members of the Board that their conduct at future meetings will be in 



 

7 

 

conformity to the rules of this by-law. 

 

 
12. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST  

 
12.1 Every member of the Board, as defined by the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act, as 

amended, shall comply with the provisions of the Act including the declaration of any 
pecuniary interest as prescribed by the Act.   

 

12.2 Where a member has any pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in any matter and is 
present at a meeting of the Board at which the matter is the subject of consideration, 
the member shall:   

 
12.3 At the beginning of each meeting and prior to any consideration of the matter at the 

meeting, disclose the interest and the general nature thereof;  
 
12.4 Not take part in discussion, or vote on any question in respect of the matter;   
 
12.5 Not attempt in any way whether before, during or after the meeting to influence the 

voting on any such question.   
 

12.6 Any member declaring a pecuniary interest shall leave the meeting until the Board 
has dealt with the matter in relation to which the interest has been declared.   

12.7 Notwithstanding the above, when the meeting is in Closed Session, a member who 
has declared a Conflict of Interest shall leave the meeting until the Board has dealt with 
the matter in relation to which the interest has been declared. The Secretary-Treasurer 
shall record in the Minutes the time the member left and returned to the Closed 
Session.   

 

12.8 Where the interest of a member has not been disclosed by reason of the member’s 
absence from the meeting, the member shall disclose the interest at the first meeting 
of the Board attended by the member after the meeting at which the matter was 
considered.   

 
13. QUORUM  

 

13.1 A majority of the Members of the Board, shall constitute quorum.    
 

13.2 If no quorum is present fifteen (15) minutes after the scheduled meeting time, the 
Secretary-Treasurer shall record the names of the members present and the 
meeting shall stand adjourned until the date of the next meeting; regular, special or 
emergency.   

 

13.3 The Chair or Vice Chair shall call the meeting to order as soon after the scheduled 
meeting time that a quorum is present.    

 

13.4 When quorum is lost, the meeting shall stand recessed and no further action shall 
be taken. If quorum is regained within fifteen (15) minutes the meeting shall 



 

8 

 

proceed. If quorum is not regained within fifteen (15) minutes, the  meeting shall 
stand adjourned.   

 

 

13.5 When quorum is lost as a result of Declarations of Pecuniary Interest by one or more 
Members, the remaining members shall be deemed to constitute  quorum, provided 
the number is not fewer than two.   

 

13.6 A member shall notify the Secretary-Treasurer when intending to be absent from a 
Board meeting.   

 

14. BOARD AGENDAS  

 

14.1 The Secretary-Treasurer shall prepare an agenda for meeting of the Board in the 
following format:  

Call to Order   
Approval of Agenda   
Declaration of Pecuniary Interest   
Meeting Minutes 
Delegations   
Public Meetings 
New Applications 
Presentations   
New Business/Action Items   
Correspondence 

Notice of Motion   
By-Laws (if applicable) 
Closed Session (In Camera)  
Adjournment  

 

14.2 In the event that any agenda item is also the subject of a delegation or presentation, 
the item may be brought forward to the beginning of the agenda in order that the 
Board may receive the delegation and discuss the matter immediately following the 
delegation or presentation, at the discretion of the Chair.   

 

14.3 The Secretary-Treasurer or designate shall accept items for inclusion on the agenda 
from  Members of Board, delegations, affiliations and/or individuals, and shall place 

same on the agenda for consideration by the Board.   
 

14.4 All items for inclusion on the Agenda shall be received by the Secretary-Treasurer or 
before the Wednesday prior to the scheduled Board meeting and will be placed on the 
Agenda at the discretion of the Secretary-Treasurer.    

 
14.5 Any item which is not on the agenda as printed, but has been determined by   

the Secretary-Treasurer to be of a nature which requires Board’s attention prior to the 
next scheduled meeting, may be added at the meeting by addendum at the discretion 
of the Secretary-Treasurer and with the Board’s approval.    

 



 

9 

 

14.6 Any items brought forward by other means shall require a majority vote of the 

members present to be added to the agenda.   
 

14.7 The order of business as stated above may be taken out of order at the discretion of 
the Secretary-Treasurer when preparing the Agenda.  Items on the Agenda may be 
taken out of order at the commencement of the meeting at the discretion of the 
Majority of Board.   

 

14.8 Additional correspondence distributed to the Board Members at the meeting, 
shall be recorded in the minutes.   

 
14.9 The Secretary-Treasurer shall prepare and print a draft agenda and make it 

available to Members of Board on the Friday prior to the Board meeting.   
 

14.10 The Secretary-Treasurer shall post the final agenda on the planning board website 
for public viewing, on the Monday prior to the meeting.   

 

15. DELEGATIONS  

 

15.1 Any person requesting a delegation or presentation shall submit a written request to 
the Secretary-Treasurer no later than 4:00 p.m. on the Wednesday prior to   
the meeting at which they wish to be heard. The written request will be included as part 
of the Agenda. The Delegation request may or may not be heard at the discretion of 
the Secretary-Treasurer and/Chair.   

 

15.2 No delegation may be scheduled for a closed session.  

15.3 Delegations are to be limited to fifteen (15) minutes, an extension to this time frame 
requires a resolution of the Board and can be up to a maximum of 15 additional 
minutes.   

 

15.4 The number of delegations per agenda shall be limited to two (2).  
 

15.5 Delegations are intended to provide information and not to enter into a debate with 
the Board members. Delegations may only speak to the matter listed on the 
Agenda, as per the submitted form.   

 

15.6 Delegations that have previously appeared on the same subject matter shall be 
limited to three (3) delegation requests and must provide new information  only.  The 
Delegation request may or may not be heard at the discretion of the Secretary-
Treasurer and Chair.   

 

15.7 Requests from a delegation will be brought to a future meeting of the 
Board upon direction from a member.   

 

15.8 Delegations can appear either in person or electronically.  
 
 

16. PRESENTATIONS  



 

10 

 

 

16.1 The purpose of presentations shall be when consultants have information for Board 
or when an individual or a group have been requested to attend a meeting to present 
information.   

 

16.2 Presentations will be limited to thirty (30) minutes, unless otherwise directed by the 
Secretary-Treasurer, followed by a question period for the Board members if required.   

 

16.3 Presentations are intended to provide information and not to enter into a 

debate with Board Members.   
 

 

17. CORRESPONDENCE  

 

17.1 Correspondence that are addressed to the Board members or that relate to Board 
matters shall be added to the agenda under communications.   

 

17.2 Correspondence not addressed to Board but that the Secretary-Treasurer deems 
to be of interest shall be added to the agenda under Correspondence.   

 

17.3 Any Communication that is not legible or that contain any defamatory allegations,   
or improper matters shall be circulated to Board Members in a confidential manner.   

 

17.4 Correspondence will be received for Information only unless a Board Member 
requests a different Action.   

 

18. BY-LAWS  

 

18.1 Every By-law shall be listed on the agenda by an identifying number, followed by a 
brief description of the intent of the By-law.   

 

18.2 Every By-law enacted by By-Law shall be numbered and dated. 
 

18.3 The Secretary-Treasurer shall make minor corrections to any by-law resulting from 
technical or typographical errors.  Corrections shall not change the intent of the By-
law.   

 

18.4 The By-laws as enacted shall be available for public inspection in the 
Administration office during regular business hours. The Secretary-Treasurer may 
provide electronic access, including posting on the Website or such other method 
as may be determined by the Secretary-Treasurer.   

 

19. NOTICE OF MOTION  

 

19.1 A Notice of Motion shall allow  members to advise of a motion they will be presenting 
to the Board for consideration at a future meeting.  Members  bringing forward a 
motion shall provide the requested motion to the Secretary-Treasurer 

 
20. CLOSED SESSION MATTERS  



 

11 

 

 

20.1 A meeting or Part of a Meeting may be closed to the public if the subject matter 
be considered is pursuant to the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended.  

 

20.2 Documents and/or Staff Reports that are ‘Confidential” will be marked 

confidential.   
 

20.3 Documents and/or Staff Reports that are ‘Confidential” will be made available   
to Board Members at the meeting and must be returned to the at the end of the 
Closed Session.   

 

20.4 Before holding a meeting or part of a meeting that is to be closed to the public, the 
Board shall state by resolution the fact of the holding of the Closed Meeting and the 
general nature of the matters to be considered at the Closed Meeting.   

 

20.5 Where a matter is discussed during the closed session under the provisions of this 
by-law, all members of the Board, staff or other person in attendance, shall not 
discuss or repeat the discussion, in whole or in part, with any other person outside 
the closed session.  

 

20.6 Both at Meetings of the Board and during their preview of the application forms 
distributed to them, the Members of the Board will treat all personal information 
applied by the applicant(s) or their assigned agent to the Consent application forms 
with appropriate confidentiality as required by the Municipal Freedom of Information 
and Protection of Personal Privacy Act R.S.O. 1990, c.M.56.  

 
20.7 Members participating electronically in closed session shall have their camera on for 

the duration of the closed session and shall confirm that there is no other person(s) 
in the room with them.   

 
21. ADJOURNMENT  

 

21.1 The motion to adjourn shall include the time of the adjournment along with the date 
and time of the next scheduled meeting.   

 

21.2 Unless otherwise determined by Resolution of the Board by a majority vote to extend 
the meeting by one-half hour, and no longer, all meetings commencing at 5:30 p.m. 
shall conclude at the hour of 9:30 p.m.     

 

21.3 Any meetings commencing at a different time shall not exceed four (4) hours in 
length.   

 

22. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 

22.1 Unfinished Business shall be listed on the agenda in the order in which it first came 
before Board for consideration and if not dealt with at the meeting at which it 
appeared on the agenda shall continue to be listed until finalized.   

 

23. RESOLUTIONS  



 

12 

 

 

23.1 A resolution shall express the decision of Board and shall be passed to give direction 
to staff.    

 
 
 
 
 

24. MINUTES  

 

24.1 The Minutes of each meeting of Board shall record:   
 

The place, date and time of the meeting   
The names of all members, staff and guests present   
All resolutions, decisions and other proceedings of Boards.   

 

24.2 The Secretary-Treasurer shall ensure that the draft minutes are available after 
approved at a future meeting.   

 

25. RECESS  

 
25.1 A recess shall be permitted by a majority consent of members and shall 

set a time to recess for.   
 

26. RULES OF DEBATE  

 

26.1 No Member shall be deemed to have precedence or seniority over any other 
Member.   

 

26.2 The Chair shall preside over the conduct of the meeting, including the 
preservation of good order and decorum, ruling on points of order and 
deciding all questions relating to the orderly procedure of the meeting. The 
minutes will reflect the Point of Order, and the Chair's ruling.   

 

26.3 The Chair may speak on any matter either before the commencement of 
debate on any matter, or without entering into further debate, may speak to 

close the debate on any matter after all Members wishing to speak have 
spoken.   

 

26.4 If the Chair wishes to take part in the debate, the Chair must leave the chair 
and call on another Member to act in the Chair's place until the debate is 
closed and in such case the Chair waives their privilege to close the debate. 
The Member acting in the Chair's place may close the debate.   

 

26.5 After the Chair, the member who moves a main motion has the first right of 
speaking on that motion, the seconder has the next right of speaking on the 

motion.   
 

26.6 No Member shall speak to a question or motion until the Member has been 



 

13 

 

recognized by the Chair. After being recognized by the Chair, all remarks shall be 
respectfully made through the Chair.   

 
 

26.7 When a member wishes to call attention to what the member believes to be 
a violation of the rules of procedure, the member shall, when recognized 
by the Chair, raise the point of order.   

 
 
 

26.8 When a point of order is acknowledged by the Chair, any Member 
speaking at the time shall cease doing so until the point has been 

dealt with.   
 

26.9 On raising the point of order, a member shall state the point of 
order with concise explanation and the Chair shall rule upon 
the point of order.   

  

26.10 The Chair's ruling shall be final, unless a Member immediately 
appeals the ruling of the Chair (challenges the Chair) as 
follows:  

 

a) The Member appealing shall state the reasons for the 
appeal;  
b) The Chair may offer reasons in favour of upholding their ruling; 
and  

c) The Members shall vote on the appeal without debate.   
 

26.11 If the appeal is upheld, then the Chair shall change their ruling accordingly or if 
the appeal is rejected, then the Chair's ruling stands and no further avenues of 
appeal are allowed.  

 
27. VOTING  

 

27.1 Voting shall be by way of a “show of hands” in favour or against.  
 
27.2 A Recorded Vote may be requested by any Member present at the meeting, 

immediately prior to or immediately subsequent to the taking of the vote. The 
vote will then be taken immediately without debate.  

 
27.3 To process the Recorded Vote:  
 

1) The Secretary-Treasurer will call Members present by name in alphabetical 
order.  
 
2) The Secretary-Treasurer will record each Member’s vote in the Minutes of 
the meeting and on the Resolution Form or Notice of Decision, as applicable.  
 
3) Every Member present at the meeting who refuses or fails to vote during a 
Recorded Vote, when permitted to vote by law on the question, will be deemed 



 

14 

 

as voting against the question.  
 
4) After completion of the Recorded Vote, the Secretary-Treasurer will 
announce the results.  

 
27.4 Member Requesting Their Stand Recorded: If there is no request for a 

Recorded Vote, any Member may request the Secretary-Treasurer to record 
their stand on a question in the Minutes of the meeting.  

 
 
27.5 The Chairperson, except where disqualified to vote, may vote on all questions, 

and when so, shall vote last. After the Chairperson commences to take a vote 
on a question, no member shall speak to such question or present any other 
motion until a vote has been taken on such question. The Chairperson shall 
announce the results of the vote once the vote is completed.  

 
27.6 Equal Vote: Any question on which there is an equality of votes shall be 

deemed to be defeated, except where expressly provided in legislation. 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

28. Motions  
 

Order of Consideration:  

28.1 Members may introduce matters to be dealt with by motion, subject to the 
notice provisions in this By-law.   

 

28.2 A motion for introducing a new matter shall not be presented without notice unless 
the Board, without debate, dispenses with such notice by a two-thirds vote of the 
Members present.   

 

28.3 Every motion, amendment to a main motion, or amendment to an amendment 
must be formally moved and seconded before the Chair can put the question to 
Board for a vote, and prior to any discussion on the question.   

 

28.4 Any member may require a motion under discussion to be read by the Chair 
at any time during the debate but not so as to interrupt another member who 
is speaking.   

 
28.5 Motions will be presented and debated in the order of their presentation on the 

agenda. With concurrence of two-thirds of the Members present at a meeting, a 
motion may be brought out of that order and considered at the requested time.  

 
28.6 Motion to Defer: A motion to defer will include a reason for deferral and 

assigned a date for its return for disposition at a future regularly scheduled 
meeting, otherwise that motion will be brought forward on the agenda for the 
next regular meeting.  

 
28.7 Amending Motion: Amendment to a motion may be made to change or vary the 

main motion provided such amendment will not materially change the intent or 



 

15 

 

meaning of the main motion and may include the changing or deleting of certain 
words or adding words for clarification of the intent. A motion to amend the 
main motion will be made in writing. 

  
28.8 An amendment modifying a motion may be made provided it is not contrary to 

the main intention of the motion.  
 
28.9 An alternate motion may only be introduced if the motion in debate is not 

passed.  
 
 
28.10 Limitation: Only one amendment at a time can be presented to a main motion, 

and only one amendment to an amendment may be presented.  
 
28.11 Order of Vote: Where there is a motion to amend a motion of amendment, the 

motion to amend will be voted upon first. If no other amendment to the 
amendment is presented, the amending motion will be put to the. If no other 
amendment to the main motion is presented, the main motion as presented or 
amended depending on the disposition of the amendment, will be put to vote.  

 
29.  VERBAL MOTIONS  
 
29.1 The following motions may be introduced verbally and without written notice 

and without leave:  
 

Point of Order or Personal Privilege;  
a Motion to Withdraw a Motion for Amendment;  
a Motion to Recess the meeting;  
a Motion to Call the Vote on a Question in Debate;  
a Motion to Divide the components of a motion for separate voting;  
a Motion to Request a Short Reading of a written motion;  
a Motion to move out of Closed Session;  
a Motion to change the Order Of Business listed on the agenda;  
a Motion to Adjourn the meeting.  

 

30.  SEVERABILITY 

 
30.1 If any section or sections of this by-law or parts thereof are found by a court of law to 

be illegal or beyond the power of the Board to enact, such section or sections or parts 
thereof shall be deemed to be severable, and all other sections or parts of this by-law 
shall be deemed to be separate and independent therefrom and to be enacted as 
such.  

 
31.  CONFLICT 
 

31.1 If a provision of this by-law conflicts with an Act or regulation or another by-law the 
provision that is the most restrictive shall prevail.  

 

32.  REPEALED BY-LAWS  



 

16 

 

 

32.1 This By-law repeals any procedural by-laws passed by the Board. 
 

33.  EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

33.1 This By-law shall come into force and take effect upon the date of passing.  
 




